
 

 
HOUSING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Regular Meeting:  November 10, 2010 
Time:  8:00 a.m. 

HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA 94541-6633 
 

The public is welcome at all Housing Commission meetings.  If you wish to speak on a matter NOT on the Agenda, please file a Public Comment card with the Commission Clerk.  Upon recognition 
by the Chairperson during Public Comment, state your name, comments and/or questions.  Anyone wishing to address the Commission on an agenda item or on business introduced by the Housing 
Commission may do so when the Chairperson calls for comments on the agenda item.  Please be brief and limit your comments to the specific subject under discussion.   NOTE:  Only matters within 
the Housing Commission’s jurisdiction may be addressed.   
 
To allow the opportunity for all to speak, a time limit of 3 minutes has been set for public speakers wishing to address the Housing Commission.   
 
The Housing Commission Secretary of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has, on November 4, 2010, duly distributed this Agenda to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors for posting 
in the office of the Alameda County Administration Building and has posted it on the bulletin board of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance to participate in this meeting is needed, please contact the Housing Authority 
office at (510)727-8511.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Housing Authority to make reasonable arrangements. 
 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL PAGE 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 13, 2010 MEETING 2 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
On matters not on the Agenda 

4. NEW BUSINESS  

4-1. Approve Revisions to HACA’s Section 8 Administrative Plan  ACTION 7 

4-2. Resolution Authorizing Submittal of Application to HUD for the Family 
Unification Program 

ACTION 9 

4-3. Resolution Approving Amendments to HACA’s Conflict of Interest Code ACTION 11 

4-4. Resolution Appointing Mark Gerry and Ron Dion to Northern California 
Community Housing Services, Inc. Board of Directors 

ACTION 15 

4-5. Management Class Annual Comparability Adjustment ACTION 17 

4-6. Quarterly Financial Statement INFORMATION 19 

4-7. Program Activity Reports INFORMATION 21 

5. COMMITTEE REPORTS   

6. COMMISSIONER REPORTS   

7. COMMUNICATIONS   

8. ADJOURNMENT   

   

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
October 13, 2010 

 
 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 
HOUSING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 13, 2010, 8:00 A.M. 
HACA BOARD ROOM 

 
SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 Call to Order 
Chairperson Steiner called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. 
 

 Roll Call 
Present:  Cmrs. Atkin, Dutra-Vernaci, Gerry, 
Haddock, Lockhart, Natarajan, Peixoto and Steiner 

 
Entered after Roll Call:  Cmr. Reed 
Excused:  Cmrs. Cashmere and Medina   

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 8, 2010 MEETING 

 Recommendation:  Approve the minutes as presented.       
Motion/Second:  Atkin/Dutra-Vernaci 
Ayes:  All    Motion passed. 
 
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

  
Before opening Public Comment, Chairperson Steiner introduced Marvin Peixoto, the new 
Commissioner from the City of Hayward.  Cmr. Peixoto spoke briefly about his background and 
stated that he was looking forward to serving on the Housing Commission. 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT  

 None. 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS  

 
4-1. PRESENTATION:  RECOGNIZE TONYA EDMOND AS EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER 

(EOQ) 

 Marsha Collier, chair of the Communications Committee, introduced Tonya Edmond as the 
employee of the quarter for Oct-Dec 2010.  Ms. Edmond expressed her appreciation for the 
recognition and Commissioners congratulated her. 

 

4-2. RESOLUTION NO. 14-10:  APPROVING THE DISPOSITION APPLICATION  - NIDUS 
COURT & DYER STREET PUBLIC HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS  

 
Recommendation:  Adopt the Resolution No. 14-10 approving and authorizing submittal of a 
disposition application for 100 public housing units. 
 
Motion/Second:  Atkin/Natarajan. 



 

 

 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Natarajan asked if projects planned for rehabilitation receive an 
automatic exemption under environmental laws.  Mr. Dion explained that a checklist must first 
be prepared to determine whether or not an exemption applies.    
 
Ayes:  All   Motion passed. 
 
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED.  

 

4-3. RESOLUTION NO. 15-10: APPROVING AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF 
INCORPORATION AND BYLAWS FOR NORTHERN CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY 
HOUSING SERVICES, INC. (NCCHS) 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 15-10 approving the amended and restated articles of 
incorporation and amended and restated bylaws. 
 
Motion/Second: Natarajan/Dutra-Vernaci   
 
Commission Discussion: 
Cmr. Gerry volunteered to serve on the NCCHS Board, filling the third Commission seat.  Cmr. 
Atkin read a sentence from Article III, Section 2 of the amended and restated bylaws and 
commented that it was difficult to understand that section due to the way it is worded.  

Ayes:  All    Motion passed. 
 
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED 

 

4-4. ACTION: APPROVAL OF BENEFIT PAYMENT STANDARDS 

 Before the staff report was presented, Ms. Gouig acknowledged the tremendous amount of work 
and analysis that was completed by Jennifer Cado, Senior Administrative Analyst.  
 
Recommendation:  Approve the proposed payment standards. 
 
Motion/Second: Lockhart/Natarajan 
 
Commission Discussion: 
Cmr. Dutra-Vernaci asked if the proposed payment standards included utility allowances and Ms. 
Cado explained how they were used in the analysis for determining the proposed payment 
standards.  Cmr. Atkin commented on the proposed payment standards for Emeryville and gave 
an example to show that they may not be adequate in Emeryville’s current real estate market. 
 
9 Ayes; 1 Nay:  Cmr. Atkin   Motion passed. 
 
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 
4-5. INFORMATION:  BUDGET STATUS REPORTS 

Report received.   

 
4-6. INFORMATION:  PROGRAM ACTIVITY REPORTS 

Report received.  
 



 

 

Comments from the Public: 
Sharon DeCray, HAFS Program Manager, announced that the accomplishments of participants in 
the Family Self-Sufficiency program will be celebrated at an event in November.  Ms. DeCray 
thanked Cmr. Reed for securing the San Leandro Library for the event.  Ms. DeCray also spoke 
about the What Home Means to Me poster contest and announced that 3 posters from HACA 
were selected by NAHRO’s Northern California chapter for submission to the national 
competition.  She also thanked Cmr. Reed and Cmr. Reed’s son for helping the children while 
they were creating posters. 

 
5. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

None. 

 
6. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

None. 

 
7. COMMUNICATIONS 

Ms. Gouig announced that Mary Rizzo-Shuman, HAHM Program Manager, was honored by the 
City of Hayward as a volunteer and acknowledged some of the certificates that Ms. Rizzo-
Shuman received from local and state officials.  
 
Jim McRoberts, Information Technology Manager, announced that HACA’s Electronic Content 
Management (ECM) solution was featured in a government case study article.  A copy of the 
article was distributed to the Housing Commission. 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Chairperson Steiner adjourned the meeting at 8:50 a.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

  

Melissa Taesali 
Executive Assistant 

 

 Christine Gouig 
Executive Director/Secretary 
 

 

 

 Approved: Christine Steiner 
Commission Chairperson 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
November 10, 2010 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 



 

7 

 
 

 

 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  November 10, 2010 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
Every housing authority with a Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program is required by 
HUD to adopt an Administrative Plan (Admin Plan). The purpose of the Admin Plan is to 
establish the housing authority’s policies for administering the Section 8 Program in a manner 
consistent with HUD requirements and the housing authority’s Agency Plan—which is its 
policies, programs, operations, and strategies for meeting local housing needs and goals.  
HACA’s Administrative Plan is available for public review. 

HACA’s Admin Plan is based on the Model Administrative Plan published by Nan McKay and 
Associates, Inc. (Nan McKay), one of the industry’s most highly regarded training, consulting, 
and publishing enterprises.  Periodically, Nan McKay publishes updates to its Model Admin Plan 
that consolidate the HUD policy mandates issued since the last revision and make various 
editorial clarifications.  The proposed revisions to HACA’s Admin Plan apply the relevant changes 
from the Nan McKay Model Administrative Plan.  As discussed below, additional policy changes 
to HACA’s Admin Plan are also proposed. 

DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
Policy revisions are being made to the following HACA Admin Plan Chapters: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 10, 
12, and 14 and 16.  See Attachment A. 

Except as otherwise described below, the policy revisions were necessitated by HUD’s 
December 29, 2009, issuance of a final rule changing regulations on disclosure and 
documentation of social security numbers (SSN), and making use of the HUD Enterprise Income 
Verification (EIV) System mandatory for all housing authorities.  Since the rule became effective 
on January 31, 2010, HUD's Office of Public and Indian Housing has issued three major notices 
providing guidance on effective use of the EIV System. 

Subject: Model Section 8 Admin Plan Revisions and Other Revisions 
  
Exhibits Attached: Attachment A - Summary of policy revisions 
  
Recommendation: Receive report; approve proposed policy revisions 
  
Financial Statement: None 



 

8 

 

Chapter 3 
In addition to revisions being made to page 3-15 to comply with the mandated HUD regulatory 
changes, for clarity, revisions are also being made to page 3-9 to add previously omitted HUD 
requirements regarding live-in aides. 

Chapter 4 
In addition to revisions being made to 4-III.E, pp. 4-18 and 4-19, to reflect new SSN disclosure 
and documentation requirements, revisions are also being made to pp. 4-12 and 4-13 to 
document HACA selection policies applicable to categories of families for which HUD has 
designated assistance or awarded funding to HACA, or for which HUD may award funding to 
HACA in response to an application from HACA. 

Chapter 5 
Revised page 5-5 to update reference to guidance on fraud and to add a mandatory briefing 
packet document; added content to page 5-12 to add previously omitted HUD requirements 
regarding live-in aides. 

Chapter 6 
Revised pages 6-7 through 6-9 to reflect mandatory use of EIV systems and HUD verification 
guidance; added content to page 6-26 on the treatment of overpayment deductions from social 
security benefits. 

Chapter 7 
Deleted Exhibit 7-1 (old verification hierarchy) and made extensive revisions throughout the 
chapter to reflect new HUD regulations and guidance on mandatory use of the EIV system, 
disclosure and documentation of SSNs, and verification. 

Chapter 10 
Revised page 10-11 to reflect that sending EIV data to portability receiving housing authorities 
is mandatory, and that rules on disclosure and documentation of SSNs have changed. 

Chapter 12 
Made revisions and added content to page 12-3 regarding deferral of termination for failure to 
disclose SSNs; added content to page 12-4 regarding the death of a sole family member. 

Chapter 14 
Revised pages 14-2 and 14-4 to reflect new regulations and HUD guidance. 

Chapter 16 
Revised pages 16-25 through 16-28 to reflect new HUD guidance. 

Staff recommends that you approve the revisions to the Administrative Plan.  Once approved, 
staff training will be conducted and the revised Plan will be implemented. 
 



 

9 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  November 10, 2010 
 

 
BACKGROUND 

The Family Unification Program (FUP) provides Section 8 housing choice vouchers to housing 
authorities to assist families for whom the lack of adequate housing is a primary factor in the 
imminent placement of the family’s child, or children, in foster care; or the delay in the 
discharge of the child, or children, to the family from foster care.  Youths at least 18 years old 
and not more than 21 years old (i.e., have not reached their 22nd birthday) who left foster care 
at age 16 or older and who do not have adequate housing are also eligible to receive housing 
assistance under the FUP. 

HACA was awarded 100 FUP vouchers in 1999 and administered the Program in partnership 
with the Alameda County Social Services Agency (SSA).  Social workers from SSA identified 
possible candidates and helped them complete eligibility documents.  HACA determined 
eligibility and entered into a contract with owners to provide the housing assistance for these 
eligible families.  This time-limited program was deemed successful in serving the target 
population. 

HACA applied for FUP funding in 2009 but its application was not selected in the competition. 

DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 

HUD has released a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for new FUP vouchers for up to $15 
million nationwide.  Applications are due by December 1, 2010.  This FY 2010 NOFA creates a 
new category for families or youths displaced by domestic violence, and families or youths in 
imminent danger of losing their housing as part of the definition of “lack of adequate housing.”  
HACA plans to request 100 vouchers, the maximum permitted by the NOFA. 

HACA and the Alameda County SSA have developed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) 
that outlines the roles of each agency in operating the FUP.  The FUP NOFA requires such an 
MOU.  The resolution authorizing submittal of the FUP application also authorizes the executive 
director to execute the MOU. 

Subject: 2010 Family Unification Program (FUP) Application 
  
Exhibits Attached: Resolution 16-10 
  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Executive Director to submit 

a FUP application and to enter into any agreements necessary 
for the application 

  
Financial Statement: None 



 

10 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

RESOLUTION  NO. 16-10 
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION, AGREEMENTS AND 
MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING FOR FAMILY UNIFICATION PROGRAM  

 
WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has issued 

a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for Family Unification Program (FUP)Vouchers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (HACA) desires to submit 

an application for FUP vouchers in response to the NOFA; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Housing Commission hereby 

authorizes the executive director to execute and submit an application to HUD for up to the 
maximum number of vouchers permitted under the NOFA and to submit any and all additional 
information and amendments that HUD may require in reviewing, processing and awarding 
funding under the application. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Housing Commission hereby approves HACA’s 

partnering with the Alameda County Social Services Agency to provide services to the FUP 
participants and authorizes the executive director to execute an MOU with the Agency. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Commissioners of the Housing Authority 
of the County of Alameda on this 10th day of November 2010 by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

EXCUSED: 

 

Christine Steiner 
Housing Commission Chairperson 

Attest:        
 
 

Christine Gouig 
Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary 
 

Approved:  November 10, 2010 



 

11 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  November 10, 2010 
 
 

Subject: Resolution Approving Amendments to the Conflict of 
Interest Code  

  
Exhibits Attached: - Edited and Clean versions of the proposed amendments 

to the Conflict of Interest Code’s List of Designated 
Employees 

- Resolution No. 17-10 
  
Recommendation: Approve the proposed amendments 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Political Reform Act (Government Code §81000) requires state and local governmental 
agencies to review their Conflict of Interest Codes (Code) for accuracy and to notify their code 
reviewing bodies in even numbered years whether the Code does or does not need to be 
amended.   
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has reviewed HACA’s Code and determined that amendments must be made to the Code’s 
List of Designated Employees.  These amendments include revisions to department and job 
titles, the insertion of newly created job classifications, and the deletion of positions that have 
been eliminated.   
 
Edited and clean versions of Appendix A of HACA’s Conflict of Interest Code are attached.  Staff 
recommends that your Commission approve the proposed amendments to the Code.    
 
Upon approval, the amended Code will be submitted to the Alameda County Board of 
Supervisors for final approval.  The amended Code is not effective until it has been approved by 
the Board.   
 



 

12 

 
 
 

EDITED VERSION 
 

APPENDIX “A” 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE FOR THE   

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 
 

 Designated Employees 
 

Disclosure Categories 

Add Administrative Analyst ALL 

Delete Administrative Services Assistant ALL 

 *Consultants ALL 

Delete Contracts Manager ALL 

 Deputy Director for Operations ALL 

 Deputy Director for Programs ALL 

Delete Dublin Area Manager ALL 

 Eligibility Services Leadworker I, III 

 Executive Assistant ALL 

Add Family Self-Sufficiency Leadworker I, III 

 Housing Assistance and Housing Management Manager ALL 

Delete Housing Assistance and Family Services Leadworker I, III 

 Housing Assistance and Family Services Manager ALL 

 Housing Inspector I, III 

Delete Housing Manager I, III 

Add Housing Management Assistant I, III 

Add Housing Management Leadworker  I, III 

 Housing Specialist I, III 

Add Human Resources Analyst ALL 

 Information Technology Manager ALL 

Add Leasing Services Leadworker I, III 

Add Maintenance and Modernization Manager ALL 

 Network Administrator I, III 

Add Procurement Analyst ALL 

 Sr. Administrative Analyst ALL 



 

13 

 
FINAL  VERSION 

 
APPENDIX “A” 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE FOR THE   
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 
 
 

Designated Employees 
 

Disclosure Categories 

Administrative Analyst ALL 

*Consultants ALL 

Deputy Director for Operations ALL 

Deputy Director for Programs ALL 

Eligibility Services Leadworker I, III 

Executive Assistant ALL 

Family Self-Sufficiency Leadworker I, III 

Housing Assistance and Housing Management Manager ALL 

Housing Assistance and Family Services Manager ALL 

Housing Inspector I, III 

Housing Management Assistant I, III 

Housing Management Leadworker  I, III 

Housing Specialist I, III 

Human Resources Analyst ALL 

Information Technology Manager ALL 

Leasing Services Leadworker I, III 

Maintenance and Modernization Manager ALL 

Network Administrator I, III 

Procurement Analyst ALL 

Sr. Administrative Analyst ALL 



 

14 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  17-10 
 

APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 
ALAMEDA CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

 
 WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act (Government Code §81000 et seq.) requires every 
local governmental agency to review its Conflict of Interest Code (“Code”) for accuracy to 
determine if it is necessary to amend the Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (“HACA”) has reviewed its 
Code and has determined that amendments to the Code’s List of Designated Employees are 
necessary;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Housing Commission of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Alameda does hereby approve the amendments to the Code.   
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director shall submit the amended 
Code to the Alameda County Board of Supervisors for final approval. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Alameda on this 10th day of November 2010, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
EXCUSED: 
 
ABSENT: 
         

 

Christine Steiner 
Housing Commission Chairperson 

Attest: 
 

 

Christine Gouig 
Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary 
        

 
Adopted:  November 10, 2010 



 

15 

 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  November 10, 2010 
 

Subject: Appointments to Board of Directors of Northern California 
Community Housing Services, Inc. (NCCHS) 

Exhibits Attached: Resolution 18-10 
  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to appoint Mark Gerry and Ron Dion to NCCHS 

Board of Directors 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
At your October 13, 2010 meeting, your Commission approved Amended and Restated Articles 
of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws for Northern California Community Housing 
Services, Inc. (NCCHS), a non-profit instrumentality of HACA.  HACA plans to transfer certain of 
its public housing units to NCCHS once HUD approves HACA’s disposition application.  HACA will 
then convert the units to Section 8 project based voucher units, thus providing a more 
financially-sound income stream with which to operate and maintain the housing over the long 
term.  The amendments to the articles of incorporation and bylaws were necessary to enable 
NCCHS to carry out the new ownership and management functions inherent in the transfer of 
units. 
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
One change to the articles of incorporation and bylaws was a reconfiguration of the five-
member Board of Directors to delete the two outside directors and substitute a third member of 
your Commission and a HACA deputy director.  At your October 13 meeting, Commissioner 
Mark Gerry volunteered to serve on the NCCHS Board.  In addition, the executive director 
recommended that Ron Dion, Deputy Director for Programs, be appointed to fill the HACA 
deputy director seat. 
 
As these specific appointments were not on your agenda, the executive director indicated she 
would bring them back for consideration at your November meeting.  Staff recommends that 
your Commission approve the appointments of Commissioner Mark Gerry and Deputy Director 
Ron Dion. 



 

16 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-10 

 
APPROVING APPOINTMENTS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY HOUSING SERVICES, INC. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Northern California Community Housing Services, Inc. (“NCCHS”) is a 
non-profit instrumentality of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda, organized under 
the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law for the purpose of providing affordable housing; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the NCCHS Amended and Restated Bylaws state that NCCHS’s activities and 
affairs shall be managed by a Board of Directors; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the NCCHS Amended and Restated Bylaws stipulate that the five (5) 
Directors shall be the persons holding the offices of:  Commission Chair, Commission Vice-Chair, 
Commissioner, Executive Director, and Deputy Director; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commissioner and Deputy Director positions are vacant and the 
Housing Commission desires to fill said vacancies; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Housing Commission of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Alameda does hereby appoint Commissioner Mark Gerry and Deputy 
Director Ron Dion to the Board of Directors of Northern California Community Housing Services, 
Inc.  
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Alameda on this 10th day of November 2010 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSTAIN: 

EXCUSED: 

ABSENT: 

 
 

Christine Steiner 
Housing Commission Chairperson 

ATTEST: 
 
  

Christine Gouig 
Executive Director/Housing Commission 
Secretary 

ADOPTED:  November 10, 2010 



 

17 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  November 10, 2010 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the September 2009 Housing Commission meeting, you approved the continued use of the 
Housing Authority’s Management Compensation Policy.  Under this policy, a survey of agencies 
in the Housing Authority’s Comparability Pool is conducted annually to determine the cost of 
living adjustments that have been granted to management employees.  The average of the 
survey results is then presented to you for approval as an annual salary comparability 
adjustment.  The amount is applied to both the employees’ salaries and the Housing Authority’s 
salary ranges.  Your Commission has previously directed staff to round the results to the 
nearest whole percent. 
 
The survey is usually conducted in the fall of each year because many public employers settle 
represented employees’ union contracts and adopt their annual budgets prior to granting 
management employee increases and often the increase is not know until July, August or later. 
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
The results of this year’s survey are attached.  The results are unique in that, while most 
agencies in the pool gave no increase, several gave compensation adjustments not tied to a 
direct percentage increase in gross wages.  Specifically, the Contra Costa County Housing 
Authority gave a flat $75/month increase effective January 1, 2010; the San Mateo County 
Housing Authority is giving a flat $400/year increase effective December 1, 2010; and the Santa 
Clara County Housing Authority picked up employee contributions to retirement at the rate of 
3% of salary in July 2009 and another 1% of salary in January 2010. 
 
The average COLA adjustment for the agencies in the Comparability Pool was .33%.  Based on 
your Commission’s direction, the results are rounded to 0%.  Our current budget was prepared 
assuming a 2% annual comparability increase.  HACA’s represented employees received a 3% 
adjustment to all classes as negotiated in the current MOU.  Staff recommends a zero salary 
adjustment based on your Commission’s previous policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject: Management Class Annual Comparability Adjustment 
  
Exhibits Attached: 2010 Management Class Comparability Survey Results 
  
Recommendation: Approve a zero annual salary adjustment  
  
Financial Statement: None 



 

18 

 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY COLA EFFECTIVE DATE 

   
City of Fremont 0.0%  
   
City of Hayward 4.0% June 21, 2010 
   
City of San Leandro 0.0%  
   

City of San Mateo 0.0%  
   
County of Alameda 0.0%  
   
H.A. City of Alameda 0.0%  
   
H.A. Contra Costa County * 0.0%  
   
H.A. Marin County 0.0%  
   

H.A. City of Oakland 0.0%  
   
H.A. City Richmond 0.0%  
   
H.A. San Mateo County ** 0.0%  
   
H.A. Santa Clara County *** 0.0%  
   
   

AVERAGE 0.33%  

   

   
*   $75/month across the board increase effective 1/1/10  
**  $400/year across the board increase effective 12/10   
*** 3% of gross salary retirement pickup 7/1/09 and  
     1% of gross salary retirement pickup 1/1/10   



 

19 

 
 
 
 
 

QUARTERLY 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 



 

20 

 

 



 

21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROGRAMS  
ACTIVITY REPORT 



 

22 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
Meeting:  November 10, 2010 

 
Subject: Programs Activity Report 
  
Exhibits Attached: Section 8 Contract Report; Fraud Payments Report; Landlord 

Rental Listing Report; FSS Program Monthly Report 
  
Recommendation: Receive Report 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS 
 

 Lease-Up:  As of November 1, 2010 the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program 
had 5,502 units under contract.  The fiscal year-to-date lease-up average is 96.26% 
units.  The fiscal year-to-date budget authority use average through September is 
97.87%. 

 

 Program Utilization:  As of November 1, 2010 the average HAP subsidy is $1,085 
and the average tenant-paid rent portion is $354 for an average Contract Rent of 
$1,439. 
 
 As of November 1, 2010 HACA has 49 outgoing billed portability contracts (i.e., 

HACA voucher holders who are housed in another housing authority’s 
jurisdiction).   

 As of November 1, 2010 HACA billed other housing authorities, primarily the 
Oakland Housing Authority, for 1,574 incoming portability contracts.  HACA 
receives only 80% of the HUD-authorized Administrative Fee for billed incoming 
portability contracts.   

 

 Section 8 Contract Report:  A copy of the Contract Report is attached. 
 

 Fraud / Debt Recovery:  HACA retained $3,688.29 in fraud and debt recovery 
payments for the month of October 2010.  A total of $45,416.10 was retained over 
the last six months.   
 
HACA retained $665.00 in Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) overpayments for the 
month of October 2010.  A total of $3,619.00 was retained over the last six months. 
 

 Landlord Rental Listings:  As of November 1, 2010 there were 1,175 landlords 
with properties in HACA’s jurisdiction utilizing the GoSection8 rental listing service.  
There were 13 new landlords to the Section 8 program this month.  There were 134 
active properties listed. 



 

23 

 
 
FAMILY SELF SUFFICIENCY (FSS) 
 
FSS continued its regular round of workshops and case management activities in 
October while beginning preparations for the November and December activities.  
November 18th is the celebration of achievements event where scholarship winners, 
poster contest artists, new graduates, and newly-employed participants will be honored.  
FSS will also take this opportunity to honor volunteers and donors who have made 
significant contributions to the success of the program in 2010.  Commissioners and 
HACA staff are also invited.  FSS is also beginning to gather donations for the December 
Holiday Gifts.  It is one of the busiest and most exciting times of the year in FSS. 
 
PUBLIC HOUSING 
 

 Occupancy:  As of November 1, 2010 the Public Housing program had 229 of 230 
units leased and has a 99.13% fiscal year-to-date lease up rate. 
 



 

24 

 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
Section 8 Contract and HAP Report for the month of OCTOBER 2010 

 

 

 Certificates Vouchers 
OCTOBER 2010 

TOTAL  

OCTOBER 
2009 

OCTOBER 
2008 City Number HAP* Number HAP** Number HAP  

Albany            -     $                  -              44   $         47,740            44   $         47,740   
                      

43  
                           

43  

Castro 
Valley           13   $         11,453          240   $       260,400          253   $       271,853   

                    
246  

                        
246  

Dublin             2   $           1,762          266   $       288,610          268   $       290,372   
                    

220  
                        

198  

Emeryville             5   $           4,405            85   $         92,225            90   $         96,630   
                      

95  
                           

98  

Fremont           26   $         22,906      1,380   $   1,497,300      1,406   $    1,520,206   
                 

1,413  
                     

1,371  

Hayward         107   $         94,267      2,325   $   2,522,625      2,432   $    2,616,892   
                 

2,390  
                     

2,404  

Newark             2   $           1,762          295   $       320,075          297   $       321,837   
                    

289  
                        

292  

Pleasanton             4   $           3,524          154   $       167,090          158   $       170,614   
                    

142  
                        

148  

San 
Leandro           18   $         15,858      1,325   $   1,437,625      1,343   $    1,453,483   

                 
1,332  

                     
1,283  

San 
Lorenzo             2   $           1,762          196   $       212,660          198   $       214,422   

                    
193  

                        
182  

Union City             3   $           2,643          709   $       769,265          712   $       771,908   
                    

697  
                        

710  

TOTALS 182 $160,342.00 7,019 $7,615,615.00 7,201 $7,770,532.00  7,060 6,975 

 
* based on an average OCTOBER Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $881 per certificate contract 
**based on an average OCTOBER Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $1085 per voucher contract 



 

25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10-11

DEBT COLLECTIONS
FYE 06/30/11

JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE GRAND

TOTALS

DAMAGE CLAIMS $85.64 $0.00 $0.00 $1,280.00 $1,365.64

FRAUD REPAYMENTS $8,469.51 $5,201.58 $7,358.33 $3,688.29 $24,717.71

HAP OVERPAYMENTS $339.50 $383.00 $1,155.00 $665.00 $2,542.50

TOTALS $8,894.65 $5,584.58 $8,513.33 $5,633.29 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,625.85

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

26 

 

 

Monthly
11/2/09 12/1/09 1/4/10 2/1/10 3/1/10 4/5/10 4/26/10 6/1/10 7/1/10 8/2/10 9/1/10 10/4/10 11/1/10

Registered Landlords 890 959 1012 1050 1086 1139 1142 1146 1146 1157 1158 1162 1175

Landlords New to 

Section 8 Program 29 41 30 24 32 44 5 2 0 8 1 3 13

Active Properties 

Listed 238 251 231 252 224 235 231 225 234 118 136 115 134

Landlord Rental Listing Report

Landlord Rental Listing Report

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1
1

/1
/0

9

1
2

/1
/0

9

1
/1

/1
0

2
/1

/1
0

3
/1

/1
0

4
/1

/1
0

5
/1

/1
0

6
/1

/1
0

7
/1

/1
0

8
/1

/1
0

9
/1

/1
0

1
0

/1
/1

0

1
1

/1
/1

0

Registered
Landlords

Landlords New to
Section 8 Program

Active Properties
Listed

 
 



 

27 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

To:  Christine Gouig, Executive Director 

From:  Sharon DeCray, HAFS Manager 

Re:  FSS Program Summary 

CC:  Ron Dion, Phyllis Harrison, Linda Evans, Mary Sturges 

Date:  October 26, 2010 

Program Summary October 2010 

Total Clients under Contract: 202 
Graduates: 1 
Escrow Disbursed: $8,883.44 
Ports In: 0 
Ports Out: 0 
Terminations: 16 
New Contracts: 5 
 
Program Coordinating Committee (PCC) 
FSS staff held a PCC meeting on Thursday, October, 14, 2010, here at the Housing Authority. 
The PCC is the advisory board for our FSS program and assists in accessing community 
resources. It consists of two program participants, four FSS staff members and six members 
from community based organizations. FSS Coordinators gave updates on the FSS program and 
presented a draft revision to the FSS Action Plan. Realtor Tammy Yao discussed the real estate 
outlook for low-income families wanting to purchase a home. Ollie Arnold, representing 2-1-1, 
the local social services call center, described a few of their new programs and processing 
procedures for getting through to their hotlines for services. 
 
Section 8 Homeownership Orientation Elderly / Disabled 
A Section 8 Homeownership orientation for the elderly and disabled was held on Thursday, 
October, 14, 2010. The orientation covered the basics of HACA’s Section 8 homeownership 
requirements as they relate to being elderly and/or disabled. Eighteen attended. 
 
Workshops 
FSS partnered with Meriwest Credit Union and held a Money Management, Part-2 workshop. At 
this free workshop, participants received information on how to: 

 Manage your credit 

 Protect your credit score 

 Take action if your wallet or purse is lost or stolen 

 Access your credit report for free from all 3 bureaus 

 Protect yourself when buying things on the web 

 Fight back against identity theft 
The response and turn out was excellent as this is the last financial workshop for the year. 
Twenty-five enrolled and 30 attended. 



 

28 

Upcoming Events 
We are preparing for our first annual “It’s Your Time to Shine” celebration. During this event, we 
will celebrate the educational and/or employment milestones of the FSS participants and their 
household family members. FSS staff will acknowledge all the NAHRO poster contest 
participants, HACA and NorCal NAHRO winners and scholarship recipients and give a special 
acknowledgement to our volunteers that help keep FSS running smoothly. The event will take 
place at the San Leandro Library on Thursday November 18, 2010 from 6PM to 8 PM. All HACA 
Commissioners are invited. 
 
Holiday Gift Drive 
This holiday season we are having another gift drive to help raise donations to prepare for 
assisting all of our FSS families with a grocery gift card. Each year we ask for donations from 
various vendors, staff members, and the community. We are accepting monetary donations, gift 
cards, clothing, toys, and cans and bottles for recycling. 
 
Referrals = Case Management 65 
1 mass mailing to all 202 participants 

 Meriwest Credit Union Workshop 

 Poll Workers Employment Opportunity 

 October 22nd Job Fair at the Tri-Cities One Stop 

 The Bread Project Training Program 
 



 

29 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENT 

A 



 

Attachment A – Page 2 

 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 3 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 4 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 5 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 6 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 7 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 8 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 9 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 10 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 11 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 12 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 13 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 14 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 15 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 16 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 17 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 18 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 19 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 20 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 21 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 22 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 23 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 24 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 25 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 26 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 27 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 28 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 29 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 30 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 31 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 32 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 33 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 34 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 35 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 36 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 37 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 38 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 39 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 40 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 41 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 42 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 43 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 44 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 45 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 46 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 47 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 48 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 49 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 50 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 51 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 52 

 
 



 

Attachment A – Page 53 

 
 


